
 

Bristol Schools Forum  
 

Agenda Tuesday, 26th March, 2024 at 5.00 pm 
Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

  
Start  Item Action Owner Paper  

1.   17:00 
 

Welcome 
The Chair to lead introductions and welcome those 
present. 
 

A Chair  

 
2.   17:05 

 
Forum Standing Business 

(a)    Apologies for Absence 
(b)   Confirmation meeting is quorate 
(c)    Appointment of new members/Resignations:   
(d)   Notification of Vacancies:  
(e)   Declarations of Interest 

  
 

A Clerk  

 
3.   17:10 

 
Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

(a) To confirm as a correct record 

(b) Matters arising not covered on agenda 

 

A Chair 2 - 9 

 
4.   17:15 

 
DSG Budget Monitor Report 
 

I  10 - 17 
 
5.   17:25 

 
Director of Education & Skills Update 
Reena Bhogal-Welsh  to provide a verbal update 
and presentation. 
 

I   

 
6.   17:55 

 
Chair's Closing Remarks 
Close at 6pm  
 

A   

 
(*) A = Admin, I = Information, De = Decision required, C = Consultation, Di = Discussion 
Clerk: Claudette Campbell email: claudette.campbell@bristol.gov.uk   
Chair:   (contact via clerk) 
 
 
FUTURE MEETINGS 
Date 
21 May 2024 
16 July 2024 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

1  
 

Bristol Schools Forum 
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 16th January, 2024 

at 5.30 pm at Virtual Meeting via Zoom 
 
 Action  

1. Welcome  
In attendance: 

    
Aileen Morrison St Matthias Park  
Alastair Brown Redcliffe Nursery  
Albert Gardiner Ashton Park Secondary  

Cllr Asher Craig Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, 
Education and Equalities  

Cameron Shaw Bristol Metropolitan Academy  
Chris Pring Whitehall Primary School  
David Otlet NEU – Teaching Union  
Del Planter St Mary Redclife & Temple Secondary School 
Esther Messinger Victoria Park Primary  
Jeff Sutton GMB – Non Teaching Union 

Jo Kingston Diocese of Clifton Dept for Schools & Colleges 
– Holy Cross Primary School  

Lee Hannan Brentry Primary  
Louise Nevers St Bernadette Catholic Secondary  
Mandy Cheshire St Bedes Catholic College  
Melanie Bunce Willow Primary 
Merche Clarke St John Primary  
Sarah Lovell  Brunel Academy  
Simon Eakins (Vice Chair) Cathedral Primary  
Simon Holmes St Phillips Marsh Nursery 
Steve Hornsby (Chair) North Star Academy  
    
    
Officers   
Reena Bhogal-Welsh Director Education & Skills  
Denise Murray Director Finance and Section 151 Officer 
Travis Young Finance Manager Education and Children  
Steven Goodwin Finance Manager Education and Children  
Su Coombs  Head of Services (School Partnership Education & Skills) 
Claudette Campbell  Democratic Services Clerk to School Forum  
Guy Marshall  Finance  

  

Welcome: 

The Chair, Steve Hornsby, welcome all to the meeting. 

  
 

 

 
2. Forum Standing Business  

Forum Standing Business 
a)       Apologies for Absence 

 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

2  
 

Apologies received from  
       Jo Grayson substitute Jo Hill 
       Tonya Hill  

  
b)      Confirmation meeting is quorate 

       The Quorum is 40% of 25 active Forum Membership in attendance  
       Meeting met the threshold | see attendance list above  

  
c)       Appointment of new members/resignation 

The following vacant seats have been filled: 
       Secondary Maintained Governor Rep – Louise Nevers for St Bernadette 

Secondary  
       Secondary Academy Governor Rep – Albert Gardiner for Ashton Park Secondary 

part of Excalibur Trust  
       Primary Head Academy Rep – Esther Messenger rep for Victoria Park Primary for 

Cathedral Trust 
       Primary Governor Maintained Rep – Merche Clarke for St John Primary  

Resignation 
       The rep for Special Academy Jo Grayson  

  
d)      Notification of vacancies 

       Primary Head Academy 
       Primary Governor Academy 
       Special Academy  

  
e)      Declaration of Interest  

       Forum Members were reminded that the procedural rules set out in the council 
constitution directs all to declare where an item under discussion or to be put to 
the vote could make a material difference to that school or where they may have 
a personal or prejudicial interest.  

  
  

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
a.       The Minutes of the meeting held on the 28th November 2023 was resolved as a correct 

record. 
b.       Matters Arising/Actions 

       Officers confirmed that the meeting reports covered the actions identified in the 
minutes.  

  
 

 

 
4. Director of Education & Skills Update  

The Director Education & Skills, Renna Bhogal-Welsh shared a presentation. 
       The report will be shared following the meeting and attached to the minutes. (Action: 

Clerk) 

The presentation outlined the following: 

 
Clerk (1) 
 
 
 

Page 3



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

3  
 

a)       DSG update and High Needs Deficit – summary of the schemes including the Deficit 
Management Plan 
i           Shared the mitigated and unmitigated position with regards the deficit 
ii         Gave assurances that the mitigations identified have been verified and based on 

improving outcomes & experiences for children, young people and families of SEND. 
iii       That the plan recognised the need to ensure financial sustainability to enable better 

outcomes 
iv       The ask is for the whole system, to input to support the plan 
v         Provided a review of the workstreams currently in operation 

b)      SEND Improvement and Implementation FTE conversation. 
i           Provided an update and explanation of the application of automation to the SEND 

administrative process   
c)       Belonging in SEND 

i           Updated and provide clarity on the funds allocated to the programmes; explain how the 
£51k was to be used; that a summary report on the learning from the wide and varied 
projects would be shared with Forum.  

d)      Inclusion Hubs 
i           A report was shared in the papers for the meeting in response to the request from 

Forum for a fuller explanation on the operation of the Inclusion Hubs. 
ii         Confirmed that the sums allocated to support the establish the hubs, was not new 

money but from funds available to the service.  
iii       ALP will deliver the Inclusion Hub as a free resource for schools; Support will be 

provided to students at the point prior to them being at risk of permanent exclusion 
iv       The proposal covered the period December 2023 to March 2024 and would impact 219 

children  

The following was noted from the discussion that arose: 
e)      The Inclusion Hub project supported students and was not intended to replace top up 

funding.  The issue of non-statutory top up funding was subject to an ongoing consultation; 
the use of such funding evidenced that need was not being met in a sustainable way and the 
aspiration to create a sustainable model.  

f)        Confirmed that all stakeholders were consulted, on the creation and implementation of 
Inclusion Hub, including Bristol Association for Secondary Heads and Principles and FAP Fair 
Access Panel (Action: RBW) Details of when Heads and/or SENCOs were briefed about the 
introduction of the Inclusion Hub and what opportunities were provided for input into the 
creation of the project.  

g)       (Action: RBW) To provide contact details of the key project leaders, to be provided to 
Forum in the first instance and then disseminated out to settings & leaders. 

h)      The Inclusion Hub pathway did not include early years needs; the future aspiration and 
vision is to widen service to include early intervention. 

i)        Forum sought an explanation of the 15.47FTE capacity release amidst concerns that it 
would result in a loss to the workforce available to support the SEND Service. 

j)        RBW gave assurances that the use of robotics would allow the service to utilise the skills of 
the workforce more appropriately.  

Chair thanked the Director for the Report and Update. 
  
Resolved to Note the Report  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RBW(1) 
 
 
 
RBW(2) 
 

 

Page 4



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

4  
 

5. Dedicated Schools Grant Allocation 2024/25  
Steven Goodwin, Finance Manager, addressed the report that had been shared with members 
prior to the meeting. 
  
The report provided an overview on the DSG for 2024/25; provided details of the result of the 
consultation on the Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF); it also set out the details on 
the proposals for Central Services spend. 
  
The report set out LA’s recommendation at section 2.1  
  

       The ESFA released the allocations on the 19th December 2023 to inform the report and 
the final decision making  

       Forum were advised that there was a slight change in a number of unit values that were 
recommended in November  

       Table 1 in the report details the DSG Allocation breakdown for the sum of £491.736m  

The following was noted from the discussion that arose: 
a.       Clarification was sought on the Early Years hourly rate increase to £5.97 (s.4.13) but the 

report stated that only £5.08 (s5.3) was to be allocated to providers for 2024/25.  
b.       Officers understood the position to be that the difference is the agreed 5% retention 

used to support core functions delivered to the early years setting.  The actual 
calculation on the figures reported translated into retention of 15%.  Far greater than 
the 5% stated.  It was explained that the variance was highly likely due to the hourly rate 
equivalent figures for supplements, such as Deprivation, that were not detailed on the 
report. For transparency the full breakdown will be provided to Forum.  

c.       Agreed that Officers would provide an explanation for the 15% retention. (Action: 
Finance Officers) 

d.       A discussion followed on the views expressed in the consultation response to the base 
rate allocated to 3-4 years; 66% of responders disagreed; Officers were aware of the 
dissatisfaction expressed in the consultation and provided an explanation at section 5.4 
in the report; that the sum was set by the DfE and not by the LA.  

When put to the vote: 
Resolved to: 

a.       Note the 2024/25 funding levels 
b.       Agreed the final transfer between blocks 
c.       Agreed in principle the allocation to the Early Years National Funding Formula  
d.       Agreed the Central Services Block Allocation of: 

                                                               i.      LA Core Functions £1.223m 
                                                             ii.      School Admissions £0.592m 
                                                           iii.      Schools Forum £0.023m 
                                                           iv.      Combined Services £0.382m 

e.       That the following comment was provided to Cabinet: 
                                                               i.      that Forum was sympathetic and would agree with the responders to 

the consultation on the base rate allocation to 3 & 4 years 
                                                             ii.      that Forum supported the transfer of funds from the Schools Block to 

the High Needs Block, to support the ongoing deficit and that they were 
fully committed to supporting the ongoing mitigations; that also applied 
to the funds in smaller block combined services  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance(1) 

Page 5



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

5  
 

  
  

6. Schools Block Allocation 2024/25  
Steven Goodwin, Finance Manager, addressed the report that had been shared with members 
prior to the meeting.  
  
The report sought to inform and seek agreement on the final application of the funding formula 
for maintained schools and academies for 2024/25.  The forum decisions will form part of the 
decision to be main by Cabinet during the budget discussion on the Authority Proforma Tool 
(APT) to the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). 
  
Forum considered the LA recommendation in the report at 2.1 to 2.3 before moving to discuss 
the de-delegation recommendation.  

       Forum was asked to note that the figures given in November 2023 had to be remodelled 
to take into account the support required for Key stage 4 secondary provision. 

       To note the sum to be distributed, of £344.3m. 
       To note the final funding settlement  

The following was noted from the discussion that arose: 
       It was not known the exact numbers of schools subject to minimum funding level; 

finance officer agreed to report back (Action: Finance Officers)  
       The funding guarantee ensures that no school is disadvantage and that the allocation 

meets the directive given by the DfE. 
       The £2m Growth fund, of which £1.2m committed with £0.8m remaining; the question 

was asked whether the remaining balance could be used elsewhere.  Officers explained 
that the fund was restricted; that it was anticipated it would support those schools 
currently crafting growth plans;  

       Pupil Forecast is central to the decisions made by the Forum and in order to assist in 
assessing impact of decision-making, pupil forecast report should be brought on a 
regular basis. (Action: Future Agenda item RBW) 

       Support was expressed for scenario 2 that was outlined in the report, which is the LA 
recommended option.  The scenario outlined protected primary settings at a time that 
more financial assistance is needed and at the same time accomplishes the objective of 
moving the formula factors closer to the NFF values.    

Resolved when put to the vote:  
         i.            Agreed to support the LA recommendation Option 2 formula model for 2024/25 

mainstream funding formula  
       ii.            Approved the arrangements set out for 2024/25 mainstream funding formula together 

with the sum set aside for the Growth Fund 
     iii.            That Cabinet and Council are advised that Forum have concerns about the ongoing 

financial challenges being experienced by schools 

De-Delegation to Maintained Primary and Secondary Schools 
  
Forum Maintained members deferred this item from the November 2023 meeting with 
instructions to Finances Officers for further fuller explanation on the areas of De-delegation.  
Email information was shared prior to the meeting and answers provided to questions posed 
over the ensuing weeks. 
  
The following was noted from the discussion that arose: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance(2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RBW & 
Clerk (2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

6  
 

a.       Trade Union Facility Time – proposed de-delegation £4.15 
b.       The fund had a credit balance of £192K 
c.       The discussion centred around the proposed allocation of funds to a pot with a large 

surplus: Officers acknowledged the surplus and proposed that members did not support 
the proposed de-delegation for 2024/25; no further invoices would be raised for 
payment from Academies for 2024/25, however any outstanding invoices relating to 
2023/24 or earlier must be paid without delay; Officers would review the mechanism in 
place to manage this fund and related matters during the course the next financial year.  

d.       Academies voluntary buy-in to the arrangement; Many are aware of their obligation to 
provide TU rep to rep members in Academies Trust settings; many procure trade 
services via an alternative mechanism; assurance was given that the fund was for school 
settings to cover the cost of staff and is not given directly to union organisations.  

e.       Clarification was sought on the ‘right off’ of invoices for Academies; the proper 
explanation is that some academies were invoiced when they had not bought into the 
service. 

f.        Union rep confirmed that they would support not having a de-delegation for 2024/25 
g.       (Action: Finance Officer): To report back to on the outcome of the planned Review on 

the operation of Trade Union Facility Time fund; that a report is brought to the Forum in 
good time prior to any future decision-making. 
  

h.      School Improvement Services  
i.         Concerns were expressed by the maintained setting members about the lack of 

information given to settings on the re-modelled school improvement services.  
Assurances were sought from Officers that there would be equity across settings and an 
explanation of the new look to the service.   

j.         Su Coombs, Head of Services (School Partnership Education & Skills) was invited to 
address the concern expressed. In her presentation she confirmed that an interim model 
had been introduced; that all models of operation were under constant review; learning 
would feed into implementation; assured members that current and relevant 
information is to be shared in the coming days to all settings; that there was a co-
production workshop planed for February 2024; that this would enable an improved 
offer for all settings. 

k.       RBW acknowledged that there had been a lengthy delay that gave rise to justifiable 
frustration and apologised sincerely for the delay; RBW gave assurances that the 
intention was to move from one school improvement officer to ten across phases; that 
the recruitment process was well underway to have colleagues in place to deliver the 
new model; to ensure that it was properly embedded and was sustainable; RBW assured 
members that what was to be implemented would be far superior to the service that 
existed up to this point.  

l.         Secondary Maintained Representative from St Mary Redcliffe, confirmed that he spoke 
on behalf of the one other Secondary maintained setting, St Bernadette Catholic 
Secondary, this was confirmed by the governor rep from that setting, recently appointed 
to the Forum.  That the update on SI Service was welcomed but that they had agreed 
not to support the de-delegation to the service.  

Decision Making 
  
When the recommendation for de-delegated services allocation, as listed in the report at 2.4  & 
2.5, was put to the vote; 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance(3) 

Page 7



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

7  
 

The Chair moved for a vote from the Primary Maintained Representative on the 
recommended de-delegation:  
  
Resolved to Approve the de-delegation to the following services: 
         i.            Employee and Premises insurance 
       ii.            Assessment of eligibility for free school meals 
     iii.            Maternity supply cover 
     iv.            Schools in financial difficult 
       v.            Education Psychology 
     vi.            School Improvement Services  

Resolved to Reject Officer Recommendation to the following service: 
         i.            Not to approve a de-delegation to Trade Union facility time services and 
       ii.            For the surplus sum of £192k to be rolled over for 2024/25  

The Chair moved for a vote from the Secondary Maintained Representative on the 
recommended de-delegation: 
  
Resolved to Approve the de-delegation to the following services: 
         i.            Employee and Premises Insurance 
       ii.            Maternity supply cover 
     iii.            Health and safety roving reps 
     iv.            Education Psychology 

Resolved to Reject Officer Recommendation to the following services: 
     iii.            Not to approve a de-delegation to Trade Union facility time services and 
     iv.            For the surplus sum of £192k to be rolled over for 2024/25  
       v.            Not to approve a de-delegation to School Improvement Services  

  
  

7. Dedicated Schools Grant Budget Monitor  
Steven Goodwin, Finance Manager, addressed the report that had been shared with members 
prior to the meeting.  
  
The reported updated forum on the 2023/24 DSG position as at Period 07 to end of October 
2023. 
  
Forum were asked to: 

a.       Note the period 07 forecast position  
b.       Note that the forecast position, for maintained schools remains as reported at 

November 2023 School Forum  

Highlighted the following: 
       Net deficit on the nursery position at table 2  
       In response to a request made at the 28th November 2023, details of the 3 Schools with 

approved licenced deficit plans are shown in table 3.  The table summarised the 
repayment profile.  

The following question was addressed in the brief discussion that followed: 
       The report referenced the sum of £0.675m additional grant being provided to support 

LA maintained schools in difficulty but no explanation as to how this was to be applied.  

 

Page 8



Bristol Schools Forum Tuesday, 16 January 2024 

8  
 

       The forum will be provided with further details on how this fund will be applied as soon 
as the process is known; it will be sign off against this financial period 2023/24. 

The Chair moved that Schools Forum Note the report. 
  
  

8. Chair's Final remarks and Close  
 

The meeting closed at 7.30 pm. 

Page 9



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 1 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

Bristol Schools’ Forum 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) update  

 
Date of meeting: 26th March 2024 
Time of meeting: 5.00 pm 
Venue: Virtual 

 
 
1 Purpose of report 

 
This report provides: 
 

1.1 information of the 2023/24 DSG forecast as at Period 10 (P10) to end of January 2024 
1.2 confirmation that the 2024-25 schools funding formula has been approved by the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of the Department for Education (DfE) 
 
2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 Schools Forum is invited to:  
 

a) note the P10 forecast position for the DSG as at end of January 2024  
b) note that the forecast position for maintained schools remains as reported at the 

January Schools’ Forum. 
c) Note the DfE approval of the 2024-25 DSG Schools’ funding formula 

 
 
3 2023/24 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Update  
3.1 DSG Position as at January 2024 Period 10 (P10) 

 
The DSG ended the 2022/23 financial year with a cumulative deficit of £39.680m 
including £24.650m deficit brought forward from the prior years.  
 
As illustrated in Table 1 (with further details set out in Appendix 1), the 2023-24 gross 
allocation for DSG is £452.302m (net amount £196.550m after deduction for academies 
recoupment, National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) and direct funding of high needs 
places by ESFA) per ESFA announcement on 20th July 2023.   
 
The DSG continues to forecast an overspend of £16.396m in 2023/24, this being no 
change from the P7 reported position.   The main driver of forecast overspend remains 
High Needs top-up and Independent non-maintained placement costs resulted from 
increasing Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs), complexity of Children with 
Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND), and lack of sufficiency.  The 
mitigated cumulative deficit forecast position at the end of 2023/24 could reach 
£56.076m.   
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 2 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

Early Years continues to forecast an in-year overspend of £0.912m, and is driven from 
increasing demand in Early Years SEND £0.640m and the Early Years & Nursery 
Improvements programme overspending of £0.269m.   The programme overspend is 
intended and will be mitigated with use of the Early Years transformation funding carried 
forward from 2022-23. 

 

Summary DSG position as at 2023/24 Period 10 (P10) 
      

2022/23 
B/f 

balance 

Gross DSG 
funding / 

Budget 
2023/24* 

P10 Gross 
DSG 

forecast 
outturn 

In-year 
variance 
as at P10 

Cumulative 
C/f forecast 

position as at 
P10 

Table 1 - Bristol Dedicated 
Schools Grant 2023/24  

£'000 

Schools Block  (787) 323,851* 323,851**  (0)  (787) 

De-delegation  (527)    (1)  (1)  (528) 

Central School Services Block 8 2,717 2,709  (8)   

Early Years  (605) 37,432 38,344 912 307 

High Needs Block 42,520 86,675 103,230 16,555 59,075 

High Needs Transformation  (928) 1,627 2,677 1,050 122 

Funding 0  (452,302)  (452,302) 0 0 

Total (Unmitigated position) 39,680   18,508 18,508 58,188 
            

Mitigations (budget vs. forecast in 2023-24)  (3,180)  (2,112)    (2,112) 
Total - Mitigated position 39,680   16,396 18,508 56,076 
* Bristol gross DSG Allocations, including recoupment and deductions for NNDR, and for funding of high 
needs places directly passported to schools by ESFA totalling £255.752m as of 20th July 2023. 
**Following the closure of St Barnabas the schools block is likely to underspend by £283,653, work is 
underway to ascertain the final schools balances in 2023/24. 

 

3.2 De-delegated resources (Nil variance).  

2023/24 budget is forecast to be fully utilised.  

 

3.3 Central School Services Block (Nil Variance).  

2023/24 budget is anticipated to be underspent by £0.008m to offset carry forward 
overspend from previous years.  

 

Page 11



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 3 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

 
3.4 Early Years Block (£0.307m overspend).  

As indicated earlier in the report, Early Years is experiencing pressure in emerging 
SEND which is anticipated to overspend by £0.645m during the financial year, plus the 
planned use of the allocated Early Years / Maintained Nursery School (MNS) 
improvement fund carried forward from previous year to support Early Years 
transformation work in 2023/24.   

 

3.5 High Needs Block (£17.605m overspend). 

The High Needs block is forecast to overspend overall by £17.605m in 2023/24. This 
is mainly driven by the increasing numbers and complexity of children and young 
people with Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) in the city, as evidenced by 
pressures on top-up and placement budgets. Additionally, there is a planned 
overspending in the Education Transformation programme to utilise funding carried 
forward from 2022/23. 

 

3.6 LA Maintained Schools forecast position.  
 

As previously reported to Schools’ Forum, 2022/23 was challenging for the sector, and 
the financial health of LA maintained schools decreased by £5.279m during the 2022-
2023 year, ending with £2.263m cumulative deficit.   
 
As reported in January, the 2023/24 LA maintained schools’ forecast financial 
position deteriorated from the position as reported at Q1, where Q2 forecasts showed 
an overall adverse movement of £1.258m from the Q1 reported position, with an 
outturn deficit forecast of £4.834m.   
 
The forecast position at Q3 has deteriorated further from Q2 by £1.071m with schools 
now indicating an in-year deficit of £3.642m and a final outturn deficit forecast for 
2023/24 of £5.905m.  
 
The summarised position is shown in Table 2 below.   
 
Please note that school balances are distinct from the DSG and so these figures are 
NOT included within DSG Schools’ Block figure in Table 1 above. 
 
 

  

Page 12



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 4 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

Table 2 
 

 
 

Information provided by LA Maintained Schools at Quarter 3, projects an in-year deficit 
position of £3.642m (including Children’s Centres).  
 
Whilst Maintained Nursery Schools have seen a small improvement to their cumulative 
financial position since Q2 and are forecasting a closing deficit balance of £7.123m 
which shows a favourable movement of £0.093m since Q2, their Q3 forecast projection 
for 2023/24 continues to show an adverse movement of £0.073m when compared to 
the balance carried forward from 2022/23.  
 
Maintained Primary and Secondary schools identified greater pressures in their 
forecast positions at Q3 and are forecasting a cumulative closing position of £1.377mm 
surplus, down £2.658m when compared to 2022/23.   
 
Special schools and Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) also reported deteriorating positions, 
with forecast cumulative closing positions of £0.426m, a decrease of £0.867m when 
compared to 2022/23.   
 
All schools forecasting a deficit position have been notified to produce robust recovery 
plans to secure their long-term financial sustainability.  Meetings are being held with 
schools’ leadership team and schools’ governing bodies to explore solutions.  
Education and Financial Service colleagues are working closely with the schools on 
their recovery programmes.   

Table 2 Variance 

2023/24 Bristol LA 
Maintained Schools 
Financial Summary

Q3 to Q2

Nursery 7,050,084 7,215,354 7,122,639 72,555 11 of 12 no change -92,715 
Primary  -2,906,379 -1,907,703 -1,648,538 1,257,841 6 of 28 up one 259,165
Primary with Nursery Class -737,227 -275,696 -126,678 610,549 4 of 12 up one 149,018
SECONDARY -391,665 -21,118 397,884 789,549 1 of 2 no change 419,002
SPECIAL -789,396 -491,730 -347,447 441,950 2 of 5 no change 144,283
PRU -503,946 -325,124 -78,596 425,350 0 of 1 no change 246,528
Sub Total 1,721,471 4,193,983 5,319,264 3,597,794 24 of 60 1,125,281
Bristol LA CC 541,333 640,499 585,878 44,546 1 of 1 no change -54,621 
Sub Total inc CC 2,262,804 4,834,482 5,905,142 3,642,340 25 of 61 1,070,660

2022/23 
Carried 

Forward

Number of 
Schools with 

deficit 
variance 
Q3 to Q2

2023/24 Closing 
Balance forecast 

as at Q2

2023/24 Closing 
Balance forecast 

as at Q3

2023/2024 In 
Year variance to 

2022/23 
forecast as at 

Q3

Number of 
Schools with 
cummulative 
deficit as at 
31/3/2024

Page 13



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 5 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

3.7 Schools in Financial Difficulty 

The schools in financial difficulty funding of £0.676m, confirmed by the DfE in 
October 2023, is intended to assist the Local Authority in supporting schools in deficit 
or those facing substantial financial challenges to recover accumulated deficit 
positions and sustain balanced budgets.  

In accordance with the Conditions of Grant, and following a review of the individual 
schools’ forecast financial positions the allocation of the funding has been agreed to 
be used to support the reduction of deficit balances in the concerned Maintained 
Nursery and Primary Schools  
 
All schools affected will be supported directly by Local Authority colleagues to develop 
robust deficit recovery plans in order to determine sustainable in-year balanced 
budgets leading to recovery of accumulated deficit balances over an agreed period per 
school.  
 
 

4 2024/25 School Funding Formula approval  
4.1 Following the meeting of Schools’ Forum of 16 January 2024, where consideration to 

the final formula factors and decisions were reached, the Authority Proforma Tool 
(APT) containing the 2024/25 formula funding allocations for Mainstream schools and 
academies was submitted to the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of the 
Department for Education (DfE) by the statutory deadline of 22 January 2024.  

After completing their validations the ESFA have acknowledged the compliance of 
the Local Authority in completing the 2024/25 APT as per Regulatory requirements.  

The following was received from the ESFA on 19th February 2024:  
 

From: QUESTIONS, APTsubmissions <APTsubmissions.QUESTIONS@education.gov.uk>  
Sent: Monday, February 19, 2024 4:23 PM 
Subject: 801 Bristol, City of 2024-25 APT Compliance 
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd 

 
Dear colleagues, 
 
Thank you for providing your completed 2024-25 proforma and any additional clarifying emails and 
documentation.  
 
I can confirm that the authority’s adherence to the finance regulations and proforma appear to meet 
the required criteria, and we would like to thank you for the work done to achieve this. 
 

Thanks,  

Page 14

mailto:APTsubmissions.QUESTIONS@education.gov.uk


Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 6 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

 

Forum are asked to note the ESFA approval of the APT and schools funding formula 
for 2024/25  

Forum are also thanked for their support through deliberations and consideration to 
the final formula factors applied to 2024/25.  

 
  

Page 15



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 7 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

Appendix 1 - 2023/24 DSG P10 forecast position as at January 2024  
 

Brought 
forward 
1.4.23 

Funding 
2023/24 

P10 
Forecast 
position 

In-year 
movement 

Carry 
forward 
31.3.24 

2022/23 
Outturn 
position 

Bristol DSG Outturn 
position as at Period 10 
(P10) 2023/24 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Maintained Schools   80,857 80,857 (0)   77,821 
Academy Recoupment   240,206 240,206 0   223,990 
Growth Fund   2,788 2,788 0   2,063 

Schools Block (787) 323,851 323,851 (0) (787) 303,874 
De-delegation Services (527) 0 (1) (1) (528) (23) 
Admissions  6 575 575 0 6 529 
Centrally Retained 1 2,142 2,134 (8) (7) 2,213 
Schools Central 
Services 8 2,717 2,709 (8) (0) 2,742 

National Formula   29,523 29,503 (19)   27,105 
2-Year-Old Funding   2,914 2,912 (2)   3,172 
Pupil Premium (EYPP)   386 386 0   317 
Additional Support 
Services   500 500 0   457 

SEN Top up   1,686 2,326 640   2,074 
Staffing   2,116 2,113 (3)   1,892 
Disability Access Fund   152 181 29   105 
SEND Support   156 155 (1)     
EY & Nursery 
improvement work   0 269 269   74 

Early Years Block (605) 37,432 38,344 912 307 35,196 
Commissioned Services   2,653 4,673 2,019   3,422 
Core Place Funding   9,289 9,235 (54)   9,102 
Staffing   1,237 2,558 1,321   2,272 
Top Up (see Appendix 2)   46,390 51,665 5,275   48,610 
Placements   10,349 17,609 7,260   14,485 
Pupil Support   975 1,708 733   1,402 
HOPE Virtual School   236 235 (0)   235 
Academy Recoupment   15,547 15,547 0   15,099 
Education Transformation   1,627 2,677 1,050   1,343 
High Needs Block 41,592 88,302 105,907 17,604 59,196 95,972 
Funding   452,302 470,810     437,761 
Total 39,681 0 18,508 18,508 58,189 15,031 

 
 

Page 16



Bristol Schools’ Forum 26th March 2024 
Supporting paper for agenda item number: 4 

Report name: DSG Budget Monitor Period 10 8 
Author: Steven Goodwin 
Report date: 26th March 2024 

 
Appendix 2 - High Needs Block top up funding breakdowns by settings as at P10: 
January 2024 

 

Funding 
2023/24 

P10 
Forecast 
Outturn 

In-year 
movement 

Carry 
forward 
31.3.24 

2022/23 
Outturn 
position 

Appendix 2 - High Needs Block top up 
funding breakdowns by settings as at 
P10: 

£'000 £'000 £'000   £'000 
HNB: Top Up Special Schools  23,796 21,957 (1,839)   23,226 

HNB: Top Up OLA  2,107 2,459 352   2,501 

HNB: Top Up GFE  3,714 4,370 656   4,556 

HNB: Top Up - Resource Bases 2,359 3,551 1,192   2,351 

HNB: Top Up - Mainstream Schools 11,755 16,217 4,462   17,180 

HNB: Top Up - PRUs 2,658 3,112 453   2,543 
HNB: Top Up 46,390 51,665 5,275   52,357 

 

 

Page 17


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 DSG Budget Monitor Report
	1	Purpose of report
	1.1	information of the 2023/24 DSG forecast as at Period 10 (P10) to end of January 2024
	1.2	confirmation that the 2024-25 schools funding formula has been approved by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of the Department for Education (DfE)

	2	Recommendation
	3	2023/24 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Update
	3.1	DSG Position as at January 2024 Period 10 (P10)
	The DSG ended the 2022/23 financial year with a cumulative deficit of £39.680m including £24.650m deficit brought forward from the prior years.
	3.2	De-delegated resources (Nil variance).
	2023/24 budget is forecast to be fully utilised.
	3.3	Central School Services Block (Nil Variance).
	2023/24 budget is anticipated to be underspent by £0.008m to offset carry forward overspend from previous years.
	3.4	Early Years Block (£0.307m overspend).
	As indicated earlier in the report, Early Years is experiencing pressure in emerging SEND which is anticipated to overspend by £0.645m during the financial year, plus the planned use of the allocated Early Years / Maintained Nursery School (MNS) improvement fund carried forward from previous year to support Early Years transformation work in 2023/24.
	3.5	High Needs Block (£17.605m overspend).
	The High Needs block is forecast to overspend overall by £17.605m in 2023/24. This is mainly driven by the increasing numbers and complexity of children and young people with Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) in the city, as evidenced by pressures on top-up and placement budgets. Additionally, there is a planned overspending in the Education Transformation programme to utilise funding carried forward from 2022/23.
	3.6	LA Maintained Schools forecast position.
	As previously reported to Schools’ Forum, 2022/23 was challenging for the sector, and the financial health of LA maintained schools decreased by £5.279m during the 2022-2023 year, ending with £2.263m cumulative deficit.
	As reported in January, the 2023/24 LA maintained schools’ forecast financial position deteriorated from the position as reported at Q1, where Q2 forecasts showed an overall adverse movement of £1.258m from the Q1 reported position, with an outturn deficit forecast of £4.834m.
	The forecast position at Q3 has deteriorated further from Q2 by £1.071m with schools now indicating an in-year deficit of £3.642m and a final outturn deficit forecast for 2023/24 of £5.905m.
	The summarised position is shown in Table 2 below.
	Please note that school balances are distinct from the DSG and so these figures are NOT included within DSG Schools’ Block figure in Table 1 above.
	Table 2
	Information provided by LA Maintained Schools at Quarter 3, projects an in-year deficit position of £3.642m (including Children’s Centres).
	Whilst Maintained Nursery Schools have seen a small improvement to their cumulative financial position since Q2 and are forecasting a closing deficit balance of £7.123m which shows a favourable movement of £0.093m since Q2, their Q3 forecast projection for 2023/24 continues to show an adverse movement of £0.073m when compared to the balance carried forward from 2022/23.
	Maintained Primary and Secondary schools identified greater pressures in their forecast positions at Q3 and are forecasting a cumulative closing position of £1.377mm surplus, down £2.658m when compared to 2022/23.
	Special schools and Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) also reported deteriorating positions, with forecast cumulative closing positions of £0.426m, a decrease of £0.867m when compared to 2022/23.
	All schools forecasting a deficit position have been notified to produce robust recovery plans to secure their long-term financial sustainability.  Meetings are being held with schools’ leadership team and schools’ governing bodies to explore solutions.  Education and Financial Service colleagues are working closely with the schools on their recovery programmes.
	3.7	Schools in Financial Difficulty
	The schools in financial difficulty funding of £0.676m, confirmed by the DfE in October 2023, is intended to assist the Local Authority in supporting schools in deficit or those facing substantial financial challenges to recover accumulated deficit positions and sustain balanced budgets.
	In accordance with the Conditions of Grant, and following a review of the individual schools’ forecast financial positions the allocation of the funding has been agreed to be used to support the reduction of deficit balances in the concerned Maintained Nursery and Primary Schools
	All schools affected will be supported directly by Local Authority colleagues to develop robust deficit recovery plans in order to determine sustainable in-year balanced budgets leading to recovery of accumulated deficit balances over an agreed period per school.

	4	2024/25 School Funding Formula approval
	4.1	Following the meeting of Schools’ Forum of 16 January 2024, where consideration to the final formula factors and decisions were reached, the Authority Proforma Tool (APT) containing the 2024/25 formula funding allocations for Mainstream schools and academies was submitted to the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of the Department for Education (DfE) by the statutory deadline of 22 January 2024.
	After completing their validations the ESFA have acknowledged the compliance of the Local Authority in completing the 2024/25 APT as per Regulatory requirements.
	The following was received from the ESFA on 19th February 2024:

	From: QUESTIONS, APTsubmissions <APTsubmissions.QUESTIONS@education.gov.uk>  Sent: Monday, February 19, 2024 4:23 PM Subject: 801 Bristol, City of 2024-25 APT Compliance
	Forum are asked to note the ESFA approval of the APT and schools funding formula for 2024/25
	Forum are also thanked for their support through deliberations and consideration to the final formula factors applied to 2024/25.
	Appendix 1 - 2023/24 DSG P10 forecast position as at January 2024



